UNITED NATIONS

ECONOMIC
AND
SOCIAL COUNCIL

Distr.
GENERAL

E/CN.7/SR.285

27 May 1955
ENGLISH .
ORIGINAL: FRENCH

COMMISSION: ON NARCOTICVDRUGS R

Tenth Session o wvew 855
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND EICHTY-FIFTH MEETING

Held st Headquarters, New York,
on Welnesday, 4 May 1955, at 2.50 p.m.

CONTENTS

Scientific research on narcotics (E/CN.7/289, chapter VII;
E/CN.7/L.103, L.107, 1L.110, L.11% and L.117)(continued)

Protoeol for limiting and regulating the cultivation of the poppy plant,
-the production.of, international and wholesale trade in and use of
opium: Economic and Social Council resolution 548 ¢ (XVIII)

(E/CN.7/285 and Corr.l, E/CN.7/L.11%/Rev.l){continued)

Tllicit traffic: a. Reports on the illicit treffic in 1954 (B/cN.7/292,
E/CN.7/295; E/CN.7/R.4 and Add.1-7; E/NS.1954/Svnraries 2-10;
E/NS.1955/Summaries 1 and 2; E/CN.7/L.106 and'L.111) (continued)

ops

55-13626



E/CN.7/SR+285

English
Page 2
PRESENT:
Cheirmen: Mr. VAILLE France
Rapporteur: Mre SALDANHA India
Members: MMi: ?&Sﬁ% ; Canada.
Mre WEI China
Mr., LABIB Egypt
Mr, PANOPOULOS ‘ Greece
Mr. ARDALAN Iren
Mr, RABASA Mexico
Mr, CALLE y CALLE Peru
Mrs FORYS Poland
Mr, OZKOL " Turkey
Miss VASILYEVA Union of Soviet Socialist Republics
Mre« WALKER United Kingdom of Great Britain and
Northern Ireland
Mr. ANSLINGER United States of America
Mr, NIKOLIC Yugoslavia
Mr. DANNER Federal Republic of Germeny
Observers: Mr. KIDRON Israel
Mr. GEBARA Lebanon
Mr. GRANDJEAN Switzerland
Also present: Mr. MAY )

Mr. ATZENWILER) Permanent Central Opium Board

Representatives of specialized agencies:
Drs HALBACH World Health Orgenization

Representatives of non-govermmental orgsaizetions:

Category B and Register: ‘
Mr, NEPOTE Internationsel Criminal Police Commission

MI‘S. BESH ) .
Mrs, SMITH ) International Council of Nurses
Secretariat: Mr. YATES Director of the Division of Narcotic Drugs

Mr. PASTUEOV Secretary of the Commissicn



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 3

SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH ON NARCOTICS (/cN. /289, chapter VII; E/CN.7/1.103, L.107,
L.110, L.11k4 and L. ll?)(contlnued)

 Mr. ARDAIAN (Iran) said that his Government was in favour of

establishing a United Nations narcotics laboratory as early as possible. Iran,
as a producing country, earnestly hoped that the origin of opium might soon be
determined with certainty so that no more groundless accusations of the kind
referred to by the Yugoslav representative at the previous‘meéting,could be made.
The Iranian Government, which had co-operated with the analysts to the best of
its ability, in particular by suppring samples, would continue to follow the same
line of action.

With regard to the proposals at present before the Commission, he understood
that the authors of the various texts were in ggreement on a number of points.
He suggested that they should meet and prepare g combined text on which it would

be easier for the Commission to vote.

Mr. ANSLINGER (United States of America) wished to make 1t clear that
when the Economic and Social Council had voted on the question of setting up a

United Nations narcotics laboratory, his delegation had understood that the

laboratory's findings regarding the origin of opium would be conclusive. If that
weré not. so, the United States delegation might wish to reopen the whole question
of setting up a laboratory. Steps should be taken to resolve disputes between
chemists and obviate recriminations of any kind. For that reason the Canadian
draft resolution (E/CN.7/107) seemed to him inadequate. He would therefore vote
against it as well as against those proposed by India (E/CN 7/L llO) and Greece
(E/cN.7/1.114).

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia) had been much surprised to heér the Greek
representative say that Turkish opium could be distinguished‘with certainty from
Yugoslav opium. He had never before hea:d such a statement. He:would like to
know if there were also differences between Greek, Bulgarian and Yugoslav‘opium.
Referring to a remark made by the United Kingdom representative at the previous
meeting, he said that he did not expect that an infalliasble method would ever be

found enabling the origin of opium to be determined in every case. There



E/CNJT/SRe285 ° - -
English
Page 4

(Mr, Nikolic, Yugpslavia)

would elways be some;mistgkes,*but,at least thg methods used should be fairly
certain, For the time being chemlsts, including Mr, Fermilo end Mr. Fulton, -
aegreed that while it was possible to distinguish with certéinty between, for
example, opium produced in India and YUgdslav opium, that did not “apply to
opiums of Balkan origin, as they were called in document ST/SOA/SERQK/Bé.

Mr. LABIB (Egypt) reminded the Committee that his country neither
cultivated nor manufactured narcotic drugs, but was unfortunately s victim of
the illicit treffic, Hence his delegation was entirely in favour of the early
establishment of a United Nations leboratory, Even when the laboratory had
been set up esch country shculd naturally continue its research work in its own
laboratories; however, it would be useful to have, in addition to the national
1aborat0ries a United Nations body to which to turne

With regard to the proposals under discussion, he thougut the Committee
should vote first on the Indisn emendment and then, if it were rejected take up
the United States and Canesdien draft resolutions. In his opinion g combined
text based on the two draft resolutions would be the best solutions

Mr. RABASA (Mexico) said that his country, since it neither produced raw
materials nor manufactured narcotics, regarded the problem objectively,
recalled Economic and Social Council resolution 548 D (XVIII) which referred to
the General Asgembly the question of the establishment of a Uhited Nations
narcotics leboratory, and General Assembly resolution 83k (IX), by which the
General AsSémbly had decided that the laborator& should be ‘established at Genevas
True, the members of the Third Committee had prdposed in fﬁe cdurse of the
debate that a final decision on that point shoula be taken only afterrfhé present
session of the Commission on Narcotic Drugs, but he could see nothing in
resolution 834 tIX) to show that the Assembly had adopted that proposal. lLegally,
therefore) the principle of the establishment of a léboratory had been accepted
unreservedly and the next step was to consider how the General Assembly resolution
should be put into practice. The United States delegation had made a propoeal
to that effect in.paragrapb 3 of its draft resolution.



E/CN.7/SR.285
English C
Page 5

(Mr. Rabasa, Mexico)

With regard to the practical side of the future laboratory's work, there was
obviously no irnfallisble method for determining the origin of opium. Nevertheless
the laboratory should bage its conclusions on solid founaationé. In order to do
s0 it must have clearly-identified sarples. Economic and Social Council
resolution 548 D (XVIII) emphasized that aspect of the problem by requesting
Governments within whose territories opium was licitly produced - which, according
to the 1953 Protocol, at present numberéd seven - and Governments within whose
territories there was illicit production notwithstanding their efforfs to suppress
it, to furnish the Secretariat with clearly-identified saxples in so far as that
might be possible (paragraphs 9 end 10 of the resolution). In accordance with
the provisions of that resolution, the Mexican Government had furnished samples,
while making it clear, as he had already explained, that they were not necessarily
of Mexican crigin.' The laboratory should of course specify in every case the
methods by which 1t had reasched its conclusions.

On the one hand the Commissicn should take practical steps to implement the
General Assembly resolution to which he had referred; on the other it should
provide the laboratory with a solid foundation for its work, a point covered by
clause (a) of paresgraph 1 of the United Stateés draft resolution, which recommended
the development of "sound methods". His delegation would be prepared to support
that draft resolution on condition that his comment concerning the specification
of the methods used were taken into account and that the following éentence were
‘added to the said clause: "these methods must be standardized on opium furnished
with the absolute guarsntee of the Government cdncerned that it was produced in
that country and reference to the methods employed should be given whenever origin

of & seizure is determined by such methods.”

Mr. SALDANHA (India) said he had listened to the Mexicen representative

with particular interest as he tco had reviewed the history of the question of

the establishment of a leberatory from the consititional point of view. He could
not, however, agree with the Mexican representative's interpretation that the
General Assembly resolution was final and that all that remained to be done was

to decide how to give effect to it.



i

E/CN.7/SR. 285
English '
Page 6

(Mr. Saldanha, India)’

He himself had already pointed out that the question of principle had been
dgcided; ‘he had no quarrél with it, but wished té draw attention to sub-
parégraph (£) of the éréamble Of‘thekUnited States draft resolution.

The'important‘iSSue was whether the researcﬁ had feaéhed a stagé where the
origin of opiumycculd be determined with a reasonable degree‘Of certainty. In
resolution 5&8 D (XVIII) the Economic end Social Council had noted the divergence
of views reflected in the report of the Committee of Chemical Experts. Only one
>year had elapsed since that Commlttee had submitted its report. He was aware
thairthe research work had;beéﬁ actively continued since then, and that progress
had been made; nevertheless this was a mattef of vital importence to the opium-
producing countrles, its object being the fixing of responsibility on one or the
other of these countrles for opium which had been seized in ‘the illicit traffie.
Irf, therefore, the laboratory's conclusions had to be accepted by 2ll opium=
producing countries, they must be based on standardized pethods the validity of
which was generally recognlzed rot werely by national chemlsts hovever eminent,
but by an 1nternat10na¢ body of experts. This was an international, and not merely
a national metter. If the Commission depended upon the adv1ce of an international
“organ like the World Health Orgenization in matters medical, he dld not see why
the Commission should not agree to hig suggestion for a pronoﬁncement by an
international group of chemical ex“erts on standarization of the scientlflc
metnods for the determination of orlgln of opium.

He had already drawn attention to the need Wthh had been felt by last year 8
Committee of Experts for a reappralsal, and it was in order to avoid the risk of
premature action by the Commissicn that he had proposed that the Committee of
Experts should be convened agaln to carry out the reappraiéal. The matter was
too important to be decided hastily. He had no very strong views on the
committee's composition;' one of the advantages of appointing'the samé group of
experts was that they had'already examined the material available a year ago and
would, therefore, be in the best position to review the progress made 51nce.

With reference to the United Kinmdom representative 8 comment on the Indian
amendment, he explained that he was not asking that the method of determination of

origin of opium should be infallible. The words "with a reasonable‘degree'of



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 7

(Mr. Saldanha, India)

certainty” had been included at the end of the Indian amendment to cover that
point. Moreover, the amendment had nothing to do with the Canadian draft
resolution and applied only to the United States draft. He had no objection to
a limited practical application of the methods already developed, as suggested
in the Canadian resolution. He supported Dr. Farmilo's recommendation that a
seminar should be organized, as that would be the best way in which the question
of standarization of the methods developed for the determination of origin of
opium could be decided.

The Mexican representative wds rot correct in observing that the seven
countries named in the 1953 Protocol were the only countries authorized to
produce opium; under that Protocol, any country could produce opium but only the
seven countries mentioned in the Protocol were entitled to export opium. Illicit
traffic could, therefore, emanate from any country producing opium, whether it was,
an authorized exporter or not, and the laboratory, in order to be effective, must
extend its studies so as to cover as meny countries as possible. The Yugoslav
representative had pointed out that it was difficult to distinguish Greek opium
from Yugoslav opium. That would be equally true in the case of other countries

with common frontiers.

©=+ - Mr. WEI (China) said that his delegation wholeheartedly supported the
United States draft resolution. Eis Government had always fbught against drug
addiction and illicit traffic and it felt that it would help if the origin of
the opium could be determined. Research had reached a stage where that could be
done with a reasonable degree of certainty. Furthermore, the United States
delegation did not say that the Laboratory must keep to the methods-dlready
developed; on the contrary 1t should continue its research to find better
methods. That was how he interpreted clause (a) of operative paragraph 1 of the
United States.draft resolution (E/CN.?/L.lO}). Immediaete steps should, therefore,
be taken to establish the Laboratory and he was consequently opposed to the Indian
amendment. The Canadian draft resolution seemed to present certain dangers.
Certain countries might agree not to reveal true origin of the opium or disputes
might arise between the chemists and lead to the recriminations to which the
United States representative had referred. Lastly, he supported the United Kingdom
amendment (E/CN.7/L.117); countries might have their own research laboratory but
the final decision should rest with the international Laboratory .



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 8

Mr. PANOPOULOS (Greece) explained, in reply to the Yugoslav
representative, that when he had said that Turkish opium, for example, could

be distinguished from Greek or Yugoslav opium he had been referring only to the
experiments conducted in Greece (ST/SOA/SER.K/37) which hed shown that there were

very clearly marked differences between samples provided by the three Governments.

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia) felt that there was general agreement on the
principle that a United Nations Laboratory should be established. The only point
in the United States draft resolution which had given rise to .differences of
opinion was operative paragraph 2. If that paragraph was more flexibly drafted,
the main difficulties would be solved. He therefore supported the Iranian
representative's proposal that the authors of the various drafts should be
requeéted to meet and prepare a new text in the light of the discussion.

Mr. OZKOL (Turkey) said that he could not accept operative paragraph 2
of the United States draft resolution as it stood because, as he had already
said, there were as yet no universally recognized methods for determining the
origin of opium with certainty. The results obtained by the various methods
did not always coincide. Provision should therefore be made for the use of a
series of methods by which a reasonable degree of certainty could be assured. In
those circumstances, the Indian amendment (E/CN.7/L.110) seemed ﬁarticularly
logical and he would vote in favour of it.

The CHAIRMAN pointed out that a single method might include several
different analytical techniques. The experts' statements and report showed that

they envisaged the use of several techniques. In that way, certainty was possible

in a considerable number of cases énd, as the Mexican representative had rightly

said, an element of doubt remained only when no standard samples were available.

Mr. ANSLINGER (United States of America) was in favour of the Mexican
representative's amendrent and thanked the Mexican and Chinese representatives for

their support.

Mr. HOSSICK (Canada) said that Mr. Farmilo would be happy to give further
icformation on the possibility of distinguishing between Yugoslav, Greek and
Turkish opium. ' '



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 9

Mr. FARMILO (danada) said that 1t was possible to distinguish two main
and clearly defined types of Turkish opium, "druggist” opium and "soft" opium.
It was possible that there was also a third type. The first type could be
distinguished from most varieties of the second type by determining the calcium
and potassium content of the ash. It was not only possible to distinguish
Turkish opium from Yugoslav opium but also to distinguish between different types
of Turkish opium on the basis of the same tests. Certain types of "soft" and
"druggist" Turkish opium could be distinguished from one another by their Pm
content. Yugoslav and Greck opium could, to some extent, be distinguished from
Turkish opium by microscopic examination. The shape and distribution of the
crystals were also important criteria. In his first report, the previous year,
the use of the term "Macedonien" to designate opium from Yugosla&ia and Greece
rad perhaps been unfortunate. 1In this year's report the term used was "Balkan".
Thus, it would be seen that a jarge number cof different tests could be used and
that, in a few cases, fhe scientist must make certain reservations. Despite those
reservations, such determirations were determinations of origin. If the Greek
representative said that he could distinguish between Yugoslav and Greek opium,
he (Mr. Farmilo) was ready to accept that statement. Personally, he knew how to
do that only in a small number of cases with opium samples from Yugoslavia and
Greece, but he was convinced that différences did exist between those types of
opium. He hoped that they would be discovered in the future, thereby providing
final confirmation of the Greek representative's contention. Even now,

electrophoresis revealed certain differences which bore out that contention.

Mr .. OZKOL (Turkey) noted that the Greek representative was more positive
than Mr. Farmilo about the possibility of determining the origin of opium in every
case. Such divergencies of view between scientists should convince the Commission

of the need for caution.

Trc CTATRMMI, spzaking as the representetive of France, noted that the
modesty of a scicntisgt Gid not diminish the value of his findings. Anyone with
agyexperience in scientific research knew that a researcher would never say

that his work had been conclusive. Research was a process that went on

indefinitely.



E/CN.7/3R.285
English
Pege 10

(The Chairman)

The discussion had revealed substantlally dlvergent views on the texts
before the Cowmission. The only way to reconcile the United States draft
resolution with the Indian amendnment, for instance, was to vote on the principles
set forth in them rather than on the texts themseives; He asked the Commission
to signify by its vote approval of the procedure he was Suggesting. ,

It was decided, by 13 votes to 1, with 1 abstenrtion, that the Comm1551on

should vote on the principles set forth in the various texts.

The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the principles stated 1n paragraphs (a)
and (b) of the preamble of the United States draft resolution (E/CN.7/L.103).

The principles were adopted by 13 votes to none, w1th 1l abstention.

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia) said that he had not participated in the voting
because he did not agree with the procedure that was being £ollowed.

The CHUAIRMAN observed that paragraph (e) stated two principles for .the

Commission to decide upon.on the understandlng that the Secretariat weuld redraft
them. ‘ ‘ o

The principles stated in ﬁaragfaph (c) of the preaﬁble were adopted by
12 votes to none, with 2 sbstentions. '

The statements in paragraphs (d) and (&) of the preamble were endorsed..
The principle stated in paragraph (f) was adoptea by 1k votes to none.

The substancé of paragraph (g) was approved by 10 votes to 1, with
3 abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN asked the Commission to decide on the principle of

convening the Committee of Chemical Experts,'as recommended in the Indian
arendment (B/CN.7/L.110).

The principle was rejected by 7 votes to 6, with 2 abstentions.



E/CN.7/SR.285 " -
English o
Page 11

The CHAIRMAN asked the Comm1551on to take a dec1s1on whether the 7
chemical experts should report ‘their conclu51ons by 31 December 1955, as
requestea in the Greek smendment (E/CN.7/L.11k4). ’

The recommendatlion mad= in paragreph 1 of the Greek amendment was adopted

in principle by 7 votes to '+, with 4 abstertions.

The CHATRMAN asked the Commi551on if it wished to invite Governments,
as proposed in opeva+ive peragraph 1 of the Canadien draft resolution -
(E/CN T/L 107), to trarsmit samplies of opium seized in illicit traffic to the

Secretariam, it bein ng understood that, in order to satisfy the Chinese
representaxive the invitation would be exterded to all Governments not’ only '
those which did not have adequate facilities fer determiﬁin the origin of the
seized opium. )

The principle stated in operative parsgraph 1 of the Canadian draft‘

resolution3~thns arended, was adopted byf9 votes to 1, with L abstentions.

~ Mr. SAIDANHA (India) requested that when the States parties to the
1931 Convention informed the other parties of fhe origin of the opium seized
in illlclt treffic, as recommended in paragvaph 2 of the Cansdian draft, they “
should substantiate their stamementg by glving a brief report of the methods

used in determlning origin.

The CHAIRMAN suggested that the recommendation requested by the Indien

representative should be voted on separately. It would doubtless be unnecessary

because the findings of scientific research wereyalways accgmpanied by an

account of the method used to reach them, without which they woﬁld be meaﬁingless.
However, thére‘was nothing to prevent such a recommendation from being mede, and to
satisfy the Mexican representative it could be added that standard samples should
be used when methods were developed. ‘

The proposal was adopted by 14 votes to none.




E/CN.7/SR.285
Epglish
Page 12

The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the principle stated in operative
paragraph 2 of the Canadian draft resolution (E/CN.T/L.107).
The principle of the redommendation was adopted by 14 votes to none.

The CHATRMAN askel the Commission to approve in principle the
authorization given to the Secretary-General under operative paragrapk 3 of the
Canadian draft.

The principle was adopted by 11 votes to 1, with 2 abstentions.

The CHAIRNAY asked the Commission to take a decision on the report to
the Commission requested vnder operative paragraph 4 of the Canadian draft
resolution. It was understood, as the Indian representative had requested, that
the determination of the origin of the opium would have to be accepteble to the
Governments ccacsrned.

The principle contained in the parsgraph was adopted by 10 votes to 1,

with 3 absteantions.

Replying to a question from Mr. WEI (China), the CHAIRMAN pointed out
that the Coumission's decisions necessarily mesant the rejection of operative

paragraphs 1 and 2 of the United States draft resolution (8/CN.7/L.103). He

called for a vote on the principles stated in paragraphs 3 and 4 of that draft.

The principles in parasgraphs 3 and L4 were adopted by 11 votes to none,

with 3 abstentions.

The CHAIRMAN asked for a decision on the recommendation contained in
the United Kingdom amendment (E/CN.Y/L,ll?) to the Canadian draft resolution.

The recomrendation was adopted in principle by 14 votes to none.

Mr. NIXOLIC (Yugoslavia) again stated that he had not taken part in the

voting because he did not approve of the procedure followed.



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 13

PROTOCCL FOR LIMITING AND REGUIATING THE CULTIVATION OF THE POFPY‘PLANT,'THE
PRODUCTION OF, INTERNATIONAL AND WHOLESAIE TRADE IN, AND USE OF OPIUM: ECONOMIC
AND SOCTAL COUNCIL RESOLUPION 548 C (XVIIT) (E/CN.7/285 snd Corr.2;
E/CN.7/113, Rev.l){(continued) .

The CHAIRMAN‘asked the Comm1581on to con51der the new draft
(E/CN.7/113/Rev.1) of paragrephs S0 to.98 of the draft model code for the
epplication of the 1953 Protocol (E/CN.7/285). |

- At the request of the representativa of the Permanent Central Oplum Board
it was dec1ded that paragraph (a) should reqpest a determination of the quantity

of morphine contained not only in the opium delivered and exported or in stock,

but also in the cpium consumed and seized It was understood that consumptlou
would be. ﬁeflned as in the 1925 and 19)1 Conventlons.
At the request of the representative of the Permanent Cen*ral Oplum Board

it wes decided that peregraph (b) should state that, vhen a producing country

based its coptrol on &eterminatlon of the morphlne content, it should c0n51stently'
use that method., Simllarly, if it based its control on determlnation of the
m01sture content, it should apply that method uniformly . ,

The new text of paragraphs 90 to 98 as set forth 1n documént E/CN 7/L 113/Rev 1

was adopted as amended by 13 votes to none, with 2 abstentions,

The CHAIRMAN noted that the Commission had completed 1ts'consider&tion
of the draft model code for the application of the Protocol. On its behalf, he

agaln thanked Mr. May and Mr. Atzenwiler for their valuable assistance. The
Commission had still to decide whether it wished a commentary on the‘Proﬁocol to
be prepared for its eleventh session, or whether the commentary should not be
prepared until the Protocol had come into force. “
ILLICIT TRAFFIC: (a) REPORTS ON THE ILLICIT TRAFFIC IN 1954 (E/CN.7/292 arnd 293;
E/CN.7/R.4 and Add.l to 7; E/CN.1954/Summaries 2 to 10; E/NS.1955/Summaries 1
and 2; E/CN 7/L 106 end lll)(cont“nued) I ‘

Replying to a question from the CHAIRMAN Mr. WALKER (Uﬁlted K1ngdom),
Chalrman of the Committee on Seizures, said that the Committee had not formally
considered the note of the representative of Greece (E/CN.?/L.lll), but that the
latter had referred to it during a meeting of the Committee.




E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 14

The CHATRMAN welcomed the observers from Lebanon and Israel, and called

on the observer from Iebanon.

Mr. GEBARA (Observer for Lebasnon) called the Commission's attention to
the statement in paragraph 207 of the Commission's report on its ninth session
(E/2606) that in the documentation on illicit traffic before the Commission there
had been a considerable hﬁmber of references to the Lebanon as a country of origin
of the various drugs seized, particularly opium and heroin.

The Lebanese Government was amazed by the remark. In fact, Lebanon produced
neither opium nor heroin. Like cocaine and morphine those drugs were all imported
from foreign countries, particularly certain countries of the Middle Fast which
were not members of the League of Arab Statés. The most that might be saild was
that Lebanon was on the route used by smugglérs. The raw opium probably came
from Turkey, and the cocaine, heroin and morphine were usually brought in by sea.

With respect to hashish, Lebanon had for several years waged an unremitting
campaign againét-the cultivation of the cennabis plant which was prohibited by
law. Each year the Government orgsnized an extensive campaign.to destroy the plant
in which the army, police force and customs authorities took part. The annual
cost of the campaign was nearly one million dollars. While some clandestine
plantations in inaccessible areas might have escaped destruction, the remark in
the report of the Permanent Office of the League of Arab States that a large
number of farmers had been authofized to cultivate the cannabis plant was
completely unfounded. The Office further claimed that the farmers in remote areas
had been able to harvest the crop before the start of the campaign to destroy the
plant. In point of fact, however, the remote areas concerned were situated in the
nountains where the plant ripened late. It could therefore not have been
harvested before the start of the campaign.

The lLebanese Government was also taking extensive action to suppress the
illieit traffiec in hashish, as indicated by the scale of the seizures in lebanon.
It should be pointed out, in that connexion, that in documents E/NS/l95h/Summary 8,
9 and 10 Lebanon was often mentioned arbitrarily as a country of origin of the drug

in connexion with seizures effected in some areas of the Sinai Desert.



E/CN.7/SR.2835
English
Page 15
(Mr. Gebara, Observer
for Lebanon)

Lebanon's action to suppress the 1llicit traffic had recently resulted in
the arrest of a dangerous international gang and the United States Embassy in
Iebanon had warmly congratulatéd the Lebanese Government on behaif of the(
United States Commissioner of Narcoties.

Contrary to certain absurd or tendentibus reports, the number of drug
addicts in Iebanon represented less than one per tinousand of the porulation.
Most of them were aliens or refugees from adjacent countries. In 195k the
following seizures of narcotic drugs had been made: U43L kg. of raw opium,
1,160 kg. of hashish, 124 grammes of heroin and 3 grammes of cocaine. It would
appear from his remarks that the Lebanese authorities should be commended and

encoureged instead of being criticized.

- Mr. NEPOTE (International Criminal Police Commission) said that in
1954 his organization had warmly welcomed the Council's adoption of the
Commission's resolution concerning the ICPC. He thanked the Commission and the
Committee on Seizures for having allowed him to express his organization's
views. He also thanked the Secretariat and the Division of Narcotic Drugs for
their commendable spirit of co-operation. , v

While he considered it unnecessary to describe again the ICPC's activities
with which members of the Commission were quite familiar, their interest in the
ICPC prompted him to inform them that it had further expanded since 1954. Three
more States - Libya, Mexico and New Zealand - had joined the ICPC in 1954. In
that connexion, he thanked the Mexican representative for the part he must have
played encouraging his country to join. As a means of extending its activities
the ICPC had decided to establish a new wireless station in Paris through which
it could keep in touch with every sectilon of the world and thus improve the
liaison between the police authorities in different countries.

He did not intend for the moment to repeat some of the statements he had
made in the Committee on Seizures, summarized in its report, on the subject of
illicit traffic.

The Committee on Seizures had considered the ICPC's report to the Commission
for the year 1954 (E/CN.7/295) and had suggested a few drafting changes which
would be teken into account. Two points in the report were particularly important.



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 16

(Mr. Tepote, ICPC)

First, the rumber of cages dealt with by the ICPC.had increased by 30 per cent
a5 compsred with the’pfeceding year. The reason for fhe increase vas not so -
much that traffickers had become more active but that the police had co-operated
more closely aith the ICPC in view of the moral support it hed received in the
Council's resolution. Secondly, the final section of the report included a .
summary of cases of iilicit_traffic in which the ICPC had intervened with
remarkable results. The success it had achieved could be attributed to direct
co~operation, strongl& encouraged, among the police authorities of various
countries,' The ICPC's action might seem modest in view of the magnitude of the
problem of illicit traffic. However, action on the international level called
for patience and perseverance and the ICPC appeared to be on the right road.

The ICPC intended therefore to continue its activities along the lines 1t had
adopted, determined as it was to wage a campaign sgainst trafflckers and to rid -
society of them. |

 Mr. OZKOL (Turkey) pointed out that, in the statement made by the -
observer fox Lebanon, Turkey had been mentioned twice as a country of origin of
narcotic dfugs seized, once directly by name and the second time in a reference
to countries which were not members of the league of Arab States. The observer
for lLebanon had no right to mentlon Turkey unless he had irrefutable evidence as
to the origin of the narcotic drugs concerned. He could not have obtained such
evidence without consulting the Turkish authorities.

Mr. KIDRON (Observer for Isreel) resérved his delegation's position
with respect to the remakrs of the observer for lLebanon concerning countries
which were not menbers of the lLeague of Arab States.

Mr. WAlKER (Uhlted Kingdom), speaking as Chalrman of the Committee on
Seizures, said that a special section on Lebanon had been included in the
Coumittee's report. He hoped that Mr. Gebaras would be present when the matter
was considered.



E/CN.7/SR.285

English’
Page 17
Mr. GEBARA (Observer for Lebanon) explained that he had not intended to

level any charges sgainst Turkey. He had merely referred to & probebility based

on statements made by arrested traffickers.

Mr. VAIXER (United Kingdom), speeking as Chairman of the Committee on
Seizures, thanked the ICPC and Mr. Nepote for their oxtrememly valuable

co-operation.

Mr. ANSLIMTER {United States of America) also thanked the ICPC. He
hoped that the General Assembly of the ICPC, schedu’zd to neet shortly at
Istanbul; would give particular sttention to the situwation in the Middle East
and succeed in eliciting the support of every country with a view to perfecting
a system for the suppression of the illicit traffic in that part of the world.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking on behalf of the Commission, congratulated the
ICPC on ite work.

Mr. NIKOLIS (Yugoslavia), Mr. PANOPOULOS (Greece) and Mr. OZKOL (Turkey)
thanked the ICPC on lts excellent work and the remarkable results it had
achieved.

The (HAIRM/N invited the Turkish representative to introduce his
draft resolution (E/CN.7/L.106).

Mr. QZKOL (Turkej)léxplained why he considered it desirable to present
his resolution. Very often a country was mentioned as the origin of narcotic
drugs'seized'without any proof whatsoever and withott the Government concerned
having been consulted. Disegreezble incidents resulted which in no way helped
to rememdy the sitﬁation. A Govermment should therefore not mention a country
in an official document unless it had previéusiy consulted the authorities of
the country concérhed. If such consultation‘were made, the fact should be
mentioned. He thanked the members of the Commlttee on Ssigzures for having

unanlmously adospted his proposal.



E/CN.7/SR. 285
English -
Page 18

Mr. ANSLINGER (United States of America) said that he would support the
Tirkish draft resolution providing that, if & Covernment: sttempted to consult
another country but failed to receive a reply. it would be entitled to mention the
country of origin of the narcotic drug. The Goverament could then refer to the
countiry of origin by nsme, pointing out that it had not received a reply.

Mr. OZKOL (Turkey) accepted the United States representative's.
interpretation.

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yvcoslavia) and Mr. ARDAIAN {Iran) supported the
Turkish draft resolution snd the United States representative's proposal.

Mr. RABASA (Mexico) was in general asgreement with the Turkish draft
resolution. As regards paragraph 2, however, it was often preferable for two
Governments to exchange information directly, when possible, rather than through
the ICPC. Paragraph 2 seemed to exclude the possibility of such a direct “
exchange. He was not in any way critlclz1ng the ICPC, which was doing excellent
work.‘ Indeed, by Joining the ICPC Mexico had demonstrated 1ts respect and esteem
for that body. GCovernments, however, should be allowed to correspond with each
other directly. It could be provided, for example, that the ICPC and the United
Nations Secretariat would be kept informed by receiving coples of such

correspondence

Mr. NEPOTE (International Criminal Police Commission) thought that
that proposal was accepteble. Communication between Governments by the diplomatic
channei,'however,'wasAsometimes slow; one of the reasons for the eétablishment
of agencies like the ICPC was to facilitate direct contact between competent
services in the #arious countries. The ICPC encouraged such direct contact by
the use of a radio network among other methods. Thus the term "direct
communication between Governments" and the term "communication through the ICPC"
vwere not mutually excluéive. The system which had been carefully organized by
the ICPC did not dblige police services in the various countries to commudicate
with each other through the ICPC Secretarist. In Europe, particularly, many
matters were dealt with daily directly between the countries concerned with the

intervention of the ICPC Secretariat, which was merely informed of any action
taken.



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 19

The CHAIRMAN thought that the Commission -could egree that direct
commmnication between countries was prefersble in some cases, for example between
the United States and Mexico. Countries could communicate with each other in
three ways: through the diplometic chanrel, by direct contact between the
services concerned, and thrvough the ICPC - the latter method being particularly

advisgble when several ccuutries vere involved.

Mr. OZKOL (Turkey) stated that it haed certainly never been his
intention to prevent two Goverrments from communicating with each other directly.
It had seemed to him thet such commnication would be accelerated if countries
used the machinery of the ICPC, but that did not, of course, preclude a direct
exchange of information between Governments, and he had no Objection to such an

interprevation of his draft resolution.

Mr. HOSSICK (Canada) supported the Turkish draft resolution. Referring
to paragraph 3, he said that there was a great difference between "ecertain
origiﬁ" and "suspected origin". Absolute certainty was rarely possible. The
Commission's discussion of scientific research had mede it cleer than even ‘
scientific methods were not designed to achieve the impossible; that was why
the term "a reasonsble degree of certainty" had been used. "Suspected origin"
was a rﬁthér vague ﬁerm; it could, for example, be suspected that a narcotic
drug had come frém a certain country simply because it had been wrapped in a
newspaper published in that country. Hence when tengible probf existed of the
origin of a narcotic drug the fact should be stated to show that it was not a
. mere supposition.. ‘ | |

Mr. RABASA (Mexico) was convinced that the Turkish representative
had not wished to prevent Governments from commﬁnicating with each other
directly, but the present text of the draft resolution did not make that entirely
clear. He proposed that the relevant part of paragraph 2 should be amended to
provide that, in addition to direct communications between the Governments

concerned, the competent authorities should mske use of the machinery elaborated



E/CN.7/SR.285
English
Page 20

by the international‘Criminal Police Commission. 1In that way countries could
continue to exchange information quickly by direct communication. He wouldvbe
able to vote for the draft resolution if it were so amended.

The CHATRMAN svgrosted that paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Turkish draft
resolution should be repla.ed by the following text:

"], Recalls that the exchange of information on illicit traffic, should

be effected by the quickest possible means and recommgggg that, for that

purpose, the ccupeter® autkorities should make use of the machinery for
co-operation elaLorztzd by the International Crimiral Police Commission,
"2. Recommends Coveriren®s to commmicate, either directly or through
the International Criminel Police Commission, to the countries from which
the seized narcotic drugs would seem to come, all such information as
would enehle those countries to conduct an enquiry into the origin of the
nsrcotic drugs.” ‘

Mr. RABASA (Mexico) and Mr. OZKOL (Turkey) agreed with that text.

Mr. NEPOTE (International Criminal Police Commission) stated that
the draft resolution, as amended, would satisfy his organization.

The draft resolution (B/CN.7/L.106), as amended, was adopted by 12 votes to
none, with 2 abstentions.

Mr. NEPOTE (International Criminal Police Commission) thanked the
Commisgion for once again mentlioning the ICPC in one of its resolutions. He
would transmit the quted States representative's observations cn illicit traffic
in the Middle East to the ICPC Secretariat, which would undoubtedly téke the

question up with the countries concerned.

The meeting rose at 5.40 p.m.






